
 
Helendale Community Services District 
26540 Vista Road, Suite C, Helendale, CA 92342 

 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Thursday, July 20, 2023, at 6:00 PM 
 

SPECIAL NOTICE OF TELECONFERENCE ACCESSIBILITY  
This meeting of the Board of Directors of the Helendale Community Services District is Open to the public both in‐
person at the District Office located at 26540 Vista Road, Suite C, Helendale, California, and via teleconference by 
clicking the following link:  www.zoom.com Meeting ID 463 173 8547 Passcode: HCSD.   (Dial‐in instructions will be 
provided after registering at the link)  
 
Call to Order ‐ Pledge of Allegiance 
 
1. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Director Remote Participation pursuant  to AB2449 

(Government Code Section 54953(f) 
a. Notification due to Just Cause 
b. Request due to Emergency Circumstances 

 
2. Approval of Agenda 

 
3. Public Participation  
Anyone wishing to address any matter pertaining to District business listed on the agenda or not, may do so at this time.  
However, the Board of Directors may not take action on items that are not on the agenda.  The public comment period 
may be limited to three (3) minutes per person.  Any member wishing to make comments may do so by filling out the 
speaker’s card in person or using the “raise the hand” or “chat” feature.  If viewing remotely a speaker’s card may be filled 
out at the following link: https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/HKGNLL8 or use the features referenced above. The District 
requests that all speaker cards be submitted at any time prior to the close of public participation. 

 
4. Consent Items 

a. Approval of Minutes: June 15, 2023, Regular Board Meeting  
b. Bills Paid Report 
c. May Financial Report 

 
5. Reports 

a. Directors’ Reports 
b. General Manager’s Report 

 
Special Presentation 
6. San Bernardino County Fire Department Station 4 Budget Presentation 

 
Regular Business: 
7. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Approval of Directors’ Expense Reports 

 
8. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Possible Award of Bid for Park Lighting 
 

9. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Adoption of Resolution 2023‐18: A Resolution of the 
Board of Directors of the Helendale Community Services District Setting Procedures and 
Charges for Public Review and copy of District Records 



Agenda: July 20, 2023 
 

 
Other Business 
10. Requested items for next or future agendas (Directors and Staff only) 
 
Closed Session 
11. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 

Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) 
One Potential Case 
 

12. Conference with Real Property Negotiators 
(Government Code Section 54956.8) 
Property: 15302 Smithson Road 
District Negotiator: Kimberly Cox 
Negotiating Parties: Vertical Bridge 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment 
 

13. Report of Closed Session Item 
 
14. Adjournment 
 
Pursuant  to Government Code Section 54954.2(a), any  request  for a disability‐related modification or accommodation, 
including auxiliary aids or services, that is sought in order to participate in the above agenized public meeting should be 
directed to the District’s General Manager’s office at (760) 951‐0006 at least 24 hours prior to said meeting.  The regular 
session of  the Board meeting will be  recorded. Recordings of  the Board meetings are kept  for  the Clerk of  the Board's 
convenience.  These recordings are not the official minutes of the Board meetings.  

 
 









 
JUNE 15, 2023 | Minutes 

Minutes of the Helendale Community Services District 
REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

June 15, 2023, at 6:30 PM 
26540 Vista Road, Suite C. Helendale, CA 92342 

 
 
SPECIAL NOTICE OF TELECONFERENCE ACCESSIBILITY  
This meeting of the Board of Directors of the Helendale Community Services District is Open to the 
public both in-person at the District Office located at 26540 Vista Road, Suite C, Helendale, 
California, and via teleconference by clicking the following link:  www.zoom.com Meeting ID 463 
173 8547 Passcode: HCSD.   (Dial-in instructions will be provided after registering at the link)  
 
Board Members Roll Call:  
Present: President Henry Spiller; Vice President Ron Clark; Director Annette Roper, Director George 
Cardenas 
 
Absent: Secretary Sandy Haas 
 
Staff Members Present:      
Kimberly Cox, General Manager; Alex Aviles, Wastewater Operations Manager; Cheryl Vermette, 
Parks, Recreation & Programs Supervisor 
 
Consultants/Guests:  
Steve Kennedy, Legal Counsel (Zoom) 
Richard Nino, Burrtec Waste 
Michael Heffman, Burrtec Waste 
Val Pfeifle, Oak Hills Roofing  
 
Members of the Public: 
There were four members of the public attending in person.  
 
Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance  
The meeting was called to order at 6:01 pm by President Spiller, after which the Pledge of Allegiance 
was recited.  
 
1. Director Remote Participation pursuant to AB2449 (Government Code Section 54953(f) 

a. Notification due to Just Cause 
b. Request due to Emergency Circumstances 
Discussion: None  

 
2. Approval of Agenda 

Discussion: General Manager Cox revised item number 7 and provided new copies of the Staff 
report. She also requested to remove the closed session item. 
Action: A motion was made by Director Clark to approve the agenda as presented. The motion 
was seconded by Director Roper. 

http://www.zoom.com/


 
JUNE 15, 2023 | Minutes 

Vote: The motion carried by the following roll call vote: 4 - Yes; 0 – No; 1 – Absent. President 
Spiller-Yes; Vice President Clark-Yes; Director Haas – Absent; Director Cardenas -Yes; Director 
Roper - Yes. 
 

3. Public Participation 
Kris Cerrone, Resident spoke in protest of the rate increase on the trash fees.  
Dave Hart, Resident and COP. Mr. Hart commented that the Concert in the Park was great, he 
talked to the vendors, and they did really well. He thought the wind may have contributed to 
some people leaving early. 
 

4. Consent Items  
a. Approval of Minutes: June 1, 2023, Regular Board Meeting  
b. Bills Paid Report 
c. April Financials 

Motion: Director Cardenas made a motion to approve the consent items as presented. 
President Spiller seconded the motion. 
Vote: The motion carried by the following roll call vote: 4 - Yes; 0 – No; 1 – Absent. President 
Spiller-Yes; Vice President Clark-Yes; Director Haas – Absent; Director Cardenas -Yes; 
Director Roper - Yes. 
 

5. Reports  
a. Directors’ Reports 

 President Spiller reported on the Concert in the Park and commented that we need to do 
better with the audio. He asked that Staff focus on getting speakers out to the back of the 
park. 

 
b. General Managers Report  
 General Manager Kimberly Cox reported that Staff has completed the required Drought 

Contingency Plan and it was posted on the website by July 1st. The plan will be reviewed with 
the Board at a later meeting. The document is benign at this point. The BNSF meeting is 
tentatively scheduled for Tuesday, July 18th, the meeting will be confirmed next Tuesday. The 
LAFCO review meeting for the proposed annexation was held today, there were no 
objections. Some additional data was shared by LAFCO. The consultant will update the study 
with new data and new solid waste rates. The process should be concluded in January 2024. 

 Wastewater Operations Manager Alex Aviles presented the wastewater report.  Staff found 
the primary clarifier broken and repaired it; they repaired a leak on irrigation pump #2 at the 
alfalfa fields; sampled Wells #2, 3, 5, and 6 due to possible false positives on total coliform, 
the resamples came back non-detect. An electrician came out to look at the blowers and grit 
removal panels. Staff worked on quotes and scheduled a generator service company to 
trouble shoot both Smithson lift station (fuel pump) and the treatment plant (voltage 
adjuster) generators for the upcoming Monday. Staff found new compressor #1 tripped and 
performed troubleshooting, they found a broken wire that caused the fault.  

 General Manager Kimberly Cox gave the administration update. There were 43 account 
transfers in May, a map of those transfers was shown.  

 General Manager Kimberly Cox gave the finance update. The District has a total of 
$6,641,365. The water fund has a balance of $2,522,133; the wastewater fund has a balance 
of $3,058,563; the park fund has a balance of $590,965; and the solid waste fund has a 



 
JUNE 15, 2023 | Minutes 

balance of $190,483. The District’s funds are currently in CBB Trust ($2,048,295.19); LAIF 
(1,045,542.68; CBB Checking ($1,302,001.02); DCB ($180,233.78) and CA CLASS 
($2,065,302.81).  

 
Regular Business 
6. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Approval of Directors’ Expense Reports 

Motion: Director Cardenas made a motion to approve the Directors’ expense reports. Vice 
President Clark seconded the motion. 
Vote: The motion carried by the following roll call vote: 4 - Yes; 0 – No; 1 – Absent. President 
Spiller-Yes; Vice President Clark-Yes; Director Haas – Absent; Director Cardenas -Yes; 
Director Roper - Yes. 
 

7. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Adoption of Resolution 2023-18: A Resolution of 
the Helendale Community Services District Awarding a Sole Source Contract to Oak Hills 
Roofing for the Repairs on the Helendale Community Center Roof 
Discussion: Recently, the District received a notice of violation regarding the roof leaking. It is 
essential that it be repaired before the next rainy season. The District has been diligent over 
time, having roofing companies patch the roof when it leaked. Staff is committed to 
maintaining the integrity of the building. A more comprehensive solution is needed. Draining 
is an issue, and the downspouts are not working properly the slope has been altered with 
previous repairs. We need to guarantee that the roof won’t leak. A new roof will save costs of 
continual minor repairs and damage due to water infiltration. The District also needs to satisfy 
the County’s Notice of Violation. Oak Hills Roofing will be partnering with AMS Construction 
due to the size of the project and the urgency of the repairs. Oak Hills Roofing and AMS 
Construction have a long-standing partnership. Val Pfeifle from Oak Hills Roofing explained 
the project in greater detail. Two options were discussed: option 1: - fix certain areas that need 
repair at a cost of $152,579; entire roof replacement - $320,601. 
Motion: Director Cardenas made a motion to approve option 2, for $320,601 and award a sole 
source contract to Oak Hills Roofing/AMS Construction. Director Roper seconded the motion. 
Vote: The motion carried by the following roll call vote: 4 - Yes; 0 – No; 1 – Absent. President 
Spiller-Yes; Vice President Clark-Yes; Director Haas – Absent; Director Cardenas -Yes; 
Director Roper - Yes. 
 

8. Public Hearing to Receive Comments and Possible Adoption of Resolution 2023-15: A 
Resolution of the Helendale Community Services Board of Directors Determining that 
there was No Majority Protest to Proposed Increases to Refuse Collection Service Charges 
and Adopting a Rate Schedule for Such Charges and Superseding Existing Applicable Rates 
President Spiller opened the public hearing at 7:12 pm. 
Discussion: This item is a public hearing during which staff will make a presentation, the 
public will be asked for input and the Board will render a decision as to whether a majority 
protest exists or not. Proposition 218 requires that all rate increases go through a public 
disclosure process. Rate notices are mailed to each affected rate payor, both commercial 
and residential. The rate notice outlines the necessity for the rate increase, how the public 
can participate in the process, and the procedures for adopting the proposed rate. Rate 
notice was mailed to customers in April, the public meeting was held on 6/1 and the 
public hearing was held on 6/15. To date no protests have been received. Per the contract 
with Burrtec, they can request an annual increased based upon CPI. The annual CPI 



 
JUNE 15, 2023 | Minutes 

increase proposed for this year is 8.7% (based upon the 12-month CPI average for 2021). 
The contract caps the CPI increase at 4%. The Board has discretion to award more or hold 
to the cap. Burrtec has the right to request extra-ordinary increases. Section 10.08 
discusses extraordinary rate adjustments: changes in law: i.e. carb emission standards, 
SB1383, etc; extraordinary costs, changes in operating costs brought about by unforeseen 
circumstances beyond the control of the contractor (i.e. fuel costs, employee costs, etc.), 
and change in disposal facility, if we directed them to use alternative location for disposal. 
To date Burrtec has not invoked this section of the contract. This presentation addresses 
only residential rates. Commercial rates were included in the mailed notice. Vary greatly 
based upon type and frequency of service. Residential customers who do not pay for 
disposal on tax bill (ESFR) pay an additional $7.26 per month to cover the disposal costs. 
New developments can opt-in, but some have not done so. The proposed rate increase 
includes new components related to SB1383. The District’s waiver was denied. The food 
waste drops off program was approved by CalRecycle. The first year of reporting has been 
completed. Staff worked with Burrtec to get all commercial onboard with MCR & MORe 
and SB1383. 
Richard Nino, from Burrtec waste presented information on SB1383, recycling conditions 
and provided a market update.  
General Manager Cox discussed the rate increase.  
There were no public comments opposing the rate increase during the public hearing. It 
was determined that there was no majority protest against the solid waste related 
increase.  
President Spiller closed the public hearing 7:51 pm.  
Motion: President Spiller made a motion to adopt Resolution 2023-18 determining that 
there was no majority protest and adopting a solid waste rate increase. Director Roper 
seconded the motion. 
Vote: The motion carried by the following roll call vote: 4 - Yes; 0 – No; 1 – Absent. President 
Spiller-Yes; Vice President Clark-Yes; Director Haas – Absent; Director Cardenas -Yes; 
Director Roper - Yes. 
 

9. Public Hearing to Receive Comments and Possible Adoption of Resolution 2023-16: A 
Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Helendale Community Services District 
Approving and Adopting the FY2024 Annual Budget and Authorizing Appropriations 
Therefrom 
President Spiller opened the Public Hearing at 8:03 pm 
Discussion: The Board previously submitted and won the GFOA budget award attesting 
to the quality and transparency of the budget process and document. The District strives 
for transparency in all that we do, as we have no secret agenda, and our books are 
open. The budget development process occurs over many public meetings: Mid-year 
FY2023 Budget Review – 2/16; Review of Capital Improvement Plans – 2/16, 3/2, 3/16; 
Cost of Living Adjustment – 3/2; Organizational Chart/Pay Ranges – 4/6; Draft Budget 
workshop – 5/18; Budget Adoption – 6/15. The budget provides information about the 
District; relevant policies related to the District’s fiscal responsibilities/legal compliance. 
The Enterprise Funds are: Water / Wastewater / Solid Waste and the Governmental Funds 
include: Recycling Center / Rental Property / Park & Rec / Admin Operations. The budget 
is a plan and as such affords flexibility. Monthly financials provides a comparison on 
performance. The CIP is included in the budget. Projects over GM signing authority are 



 
JUNE 15, 2023 | Minutes 

brought to the Board for approval. Approval of the budget authorizes the expenditure of 
funds as outlined. Expenditures must be consistent with applicable laws and policies (i.e. 
Purchasing policy and Prevailing wage). Key Take-aways: The CPI of 8% has been factored 
in, a new position has been added to Wastewater (Operator I), 0.75 position added to 
Water (MW I), the overall increase of staffing is .5FTE. The District benefits seem 
comparable. There is no anticipated turnover in staffing. All Funds balance. The capital 
improvements are not factored into the budget. General Manager Cox presented each 
department’s budget in greater detail.  
Motion: President Spiller made a motion to adopt Resolution 2023-16. Director Roper 
seconded the motion. 
Vote: The motion carried by the following roll call vote: 4 - Yes; 0 – No; 1 – Absent. President 
Spiller-Yes; Vice President Clark-Yes; Director Haas – Absent; Director Cardenas -Yes; 
Director Roper - Yes. 
 

10. Discussion and Possible Adoption of Resolution 2023-17: A Resolution of the Board of 
Directors of the Helendale Community Services District Establishing the Appropriations 
Limit for Fiscal Year 2024 Pursuant to Article XIII B of the California State Constitution 
Discussion: This is an annual requirement under Article XIIIB of California Constitution. The 
limit sets the amount of taxes and assessments that can be collected by a local government 
agency. Each year the limit is adjusted for population growth and for CPI changes. The CA Dept 
of Finance provided the following: Per capita Income (CPI) = 4.44% and Population Growth 
Factor =-0.45%. The factor was applied to the $889,964 limit amount from FY2023. 
The new limit for FY24 is $935,693, an increase of $45,729. Total FY2024 projected taxes and 
assessments: $424,182.44. The District’s taxes and assessments are $511,510.56 below the 
voter approved limit. The District will not exceed the maximum limit. Any funds collected over 
the limit are required to be refunded to the taxpayers via a change in the tax rate over the 
following two years. 
Motion: Director Roper made a motion to adopt Resolution 2023-17. President Spiller 
seconded the motion. 
Vote: The motion carried by the following roll call vote: 4 - Yes; 0 – No; 1 – Absent. President 
Spiller-Yes; Vice President Clark-Yes; Director Haas – Absent; Director Cardenas -Yes; 
Director Roper - Yes. 
 

Other Business 
11. Requested items for next or future agendas (Directors and Staff only) 
 
None 
 

Closed Session 
12. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 

Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) 
One Potential Case 
This item was removed from the agenda.  
 

13. Report of Closed Session Items 
The closed session item was removed from the agenda.  



 
JUNE 15, 2023 | Minutes 

14. Adjournment 
 

  President Spiller adjourned the meeting at 8:28 pm 
 
Submitted by:     Approved by: 
 
              
Henry Spiller, President   Sandy Haas, Secretary 
 
The Board actions represent decisions of the Helendale Community Services District Board of 
Directors. A digital voice recording and copy of the PowerPoint presentation are available upon 
request at the Helendale CSD office. 












































































































	07202023.pdf
	SKM_C554e23071718100.pdf
	061523 Board Meeting.pdf
	SKM_C554e23071718100

